
Contact: Anne Jenkins, Democratic Services Officer   
Tel: 01633 656656 
E-mail: anne.jenkins@newport.gov.uk 
Date of Issue: 7 January 2016 
 
 

Agenda 
Standards Committee 

 
Date: Thursday, 14 January 2016 
 
Time: 5.30 pm 
 
Venue: Committee Room 4 - Civic Centre 
 
To: Councillors Taylor (Chair), D Fouweather, J Guy, H Thomas, Hancock, John and 

Westwood 
 

 
 
Item  Wards Affected 

 
1   Apologies for Absence   

 
 

2   Declarations of Interest   
 

 

3   Minutes of the Meeting dated 22 October 2015  (Pages 3 - 6) 
 

 

4   Matters Arising   
 

 

5   Chair's Announcements   
To receive any announcements the Chair wishes to make. 
 

 

6   Complaints   
The Monitoring Officer will report on any complaints received since the 
last meeting. 
 

 

7   Forward Work Programme   
 

 

a   Code of Conduct Amendments - Explanatory Notes  (Pages 7 - 12) 
 

 

b   Standards Committee Changes - Explanatory Notes  (Pages 13 - 28) 
 

 

c   Review of Community Councils - The Monitoring Officer to report   
 

 

 
 

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



Minutes 
Standards Committee 

 
Date: 22 October 2015 
 
Time: 5.30 pm 
 
Present: Councillors Taylor (Chair), D Fouweather, J Guy, Hancock, John and Westwood 
 
In Attendance: D Harries (Deputy Monitoring Officer – Torfaen County Borough Council) and K 

Peggington (Chair of Standards Committee – Torfaen County Borough Council) 
 
 

 
 

1 Apologies for Absence  
 
Councillor H Thomas, T Britton. 
 

2 Declarations of Interest  
 
None received. 
 

3 Minutes of the Previous Meeting: 16 July 2015  
 
The minutes of the meeting of 16 July 2015 were submitted. 
 
Agreed: 
That the minutes were accepted as a true record. 
 
Matters Arising 
 
Item 5 Complaints 
The Monitoring Officer referred to a complaint which been received.  At this stage it was 
confidential and may be reported back to the committee in due course. 
 
Item 6 Register of Gifts and Hospitality 
The reduction of the threshold of £25 was approved without debate by Council on 29 
September 2015. 
 
Item 11 Standards Committee Annual Report 
Councillor Guy read out the annual report at Council in September, which was well received.   
 

4 Chair's Announcements  
 
The Chair referred to the Standards Conference which would be reported at the end of the 
meeting. 
 
The Chair thanked Councillor Guy for presenting the Annual Report to Council on her behalf. 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

5 Ombudsman Annual Letter 2014/15  
 
Consideration was given to a letter from the Ombudsman.  Following the publication of his 
Annual Report for 2014/15, the Ombudsman had issued the Council with his Annual letter.  
The letter sets out information relating to the numbers of complaints of maladministration and 
misconduct which were referred to his office during this period relating to Newport City 
Council and its Councillors. 

 
The Number of complaints received in Newport was below the Welsh average, in particular, 
serious complaints of maladministration.  Most of the complaints received by the 
Ombudsman were discontinued or resolved.  

 
There were no findings of maladministration or misconduct during 2014/15. 

 
Members discussed the increase in numbers of complaints.  There was a National trend as 
more people were exercising their right to complain; Newport was no different.  Additionally, 
local authorities were making it easier for members of the public to complain, although in 
Newport’s case, whilst the volume of complaints increased this mostly lead to a satisfactory 
outcome. 
 
Agreed: 
To note the report and the Ombudsman’s Annual Letter. 
 

6 Ombudsman Facts Sheet - Code of Conduct Complaints  
 
The fact sheets explained the approach taken by the Ombudsman’s staff when carrying out 
interviews with elected members who were subject to investigation under the Code of 
Conduct Complaints procedure. 
 
Further information was available on the Ombudsman’s website which explained the process 
in detail. 
 
Agreed: 
To note the Ombudsman Fact Sheet for information 
 

7 Standards Committee Report - Forward Work Programme  
 
Consideration was given to a report containing a draft Forward Programme for the next 12 
months.  Standards Committee were asked to approve the Work Programme, identify any 
further items of work that should be included and to prioritise specific items for review. 

 
Members went through prioritising items for review as set out in a table in the report: 

 
 Annual Report to Council.  The report would be reviewed in September 2016. 
 Dispensations. This would be reviewed in May 2016 
 Local Resolution Protocol for Complaints.  This would be put it in as a formal review in 

May 2016. 
 Complaints of Misconduct.  An annual summary would be undertaken in May 2016. 
 Member Training and Development.  The Welsh Government were considering updating 

the Code of Conduct, therefore this would be reviewed in January 2016. 
 Ethical Standards would be reviewed in September 2016 
 Review of Community Councils would be reported back in January 2016. 
 Review of Councils Protocol.  An original copy would be distributed to members and 

would be reviewed in May 2016. 
 Review of Council Policies and Procedures relating to Ethical Standards.  A review would 

take place in September 2016.  Ethical training would be included in the on-going training 
assessment. 

Page 4



 

 Succession Planning.  The terms of office were up for renewal, this would therefore be 
reviewed in May 2016.  Advertisement to recruit new members would be displayed on 
Newport City Council’s website as well as Newport Matters. 
 
Members gave consideration to the Annual Report, attached to the Forward Work 
Programme.   
 
It was noted that there was a typing error within the Annual Report, under Item 4 Helpful 
Information, 4.1 Can I attend the Meetings of the Democratic Services Committee, which 
should have read Standards Committee.  Discussion ensued regarding the Democratic 
Services Committee and the Monitoring Officer reminded members that they were most 
welcome to observe a meeting if they so wished. 
 
Discussion ensued regarding guidelines on the baseline for meeting costs were 
discussed under Annex A, Item 3 Representation.  There was a capped contribution to 
legal costs which was less than the threshold set by the ombudsman.  The Committee 
would have to look at each individual case on its own merit but it would still be subject to 
a maximum financial cap.  It also depended on the outcome of a case.  Finally, the 
committee would see all the paperwork and therefore be fully prepared long before the 
likely outcome was considered. 
 
Agreed: 
To approve the Forward Work Programme.  Items were prioritised for review. 

 
8 Any Other Business  

 
The Chair provided feedback to members on the All Wales Standards Conference that 
took place in Cardiff on 20 October 201.6. 
 
It was considered to be one of the best and inclusive conferences attended where 
everyone felt they had a part to play.  The speakers were excellent and the workshops 
informative.  Papers on the conference were available on their website.   
 
P Davies, Adjudicator Panel for Wales who was at the Conference looked at a review of 
all investigations being undertaken and there was a common theme which was a lack of 
training.   
 
Standards Committees in other areas meeting regularly to discuss common issues and 
share good practice. 
 
As a committee future discussion should include the review of some investigations it was 
generally felt that some members could be too close and partially clouded to issues put 
before the committee.  Whilst this was not generally felt to be the case in Newport it 
would important to get an overall view of members opinion.  Members of the committee 
considered they had quite an independent way of thinking.  If there was any concern, it 
might be that elected members were sitting in judgement of their peers.  General 
discussion ensued and it was felt that it was a matter of conscience for the individual; a 
member could disqualify themselves if they thought that they were sitting in judgement of 
a peer. 
  
A local resolution protocol for community councils was raised at the conference.  
Community Councils often felt removed or isolated and did not have a support 
mechanism in place, in particular those that did not subscribe to One Voice Wales.  This 
was something that could not be imposed upon Community Councillors and would need 
to be a purely voluntary decision. 
 

Page 5



 

Finally, ethical standards around social media and dangers associated with it was raised.  
WLGA Guidance would be distributed to members electronically.  General debate on the 
use of social media ensued and what was considered best practice. 
 
Agreed: 
That the Chair send a letter to Community Councils to enquire if they would like a local 
resolution protocol to be put in place. 

 
9 Date of Next Meeting  

 
That the following dates for 2016 be agreed: 
 
Thursday 14 January 2016, Committee Room 4 at 5.30pm 
Thursday 12 May 2016, Committee Room 4 at 5.30pm 
Thursday 15 September 2016, Committee Room 4 at 5.30pm 

 
 
 
 

Page 6



 

 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  
I N S T R U M E N T S  

2016 No. (W. ) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 

WALES 

The Local Authorities (Model Code 

of Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Order 2016 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Order) 

This Order amends Schedule 1 to the Local 

Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) Order 

2008 (“the 2008 Order”) in which is set out a model 

code as regards the conduct which is expected of 

members and co-opted members of relevant authorities 

in Wales under section 50(2) of the Local Government 

Act 2000. Section 50(3) of that Act enables the Welsh 

Ministers to revise a model code which has been 

issued. 

Relevant authorities in Wales for the purposes of this 

Order are: county councils, county borough councils, 

community councils, fire and rescue authorities and 

National Park authorities.  

Article 2 of the Order amends the following 

paragraphs of the model code set out in the Schedule 

to the 2008 Order:  

paragraph 1(1), by inserting a definition of 

“register of members’ interests”; 

paragraph 1(2), by inserting a definition of “proper 

officer” and providing clarification with regard to 

references to standards committees in relation to a 

community council; 

paragraph 3(a), by omitting the reference to police 

authorities; 

paragraph 6(1)(c), by removing the requirement 

for members to report potential breaches of their 

code of conduct to the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales; 

paragraphs 11(4), 15(2), 16(2) and 17, by 

transferring some functions from monitoring 

Page 7

Agenda Item 7a



 

 2 

officers to the proper officers of community 

councils;  

paragraph 12(2)(b)(iv), to reflect the new 

provisions contained in Part 8 of the Local 

Government (Wales) Measure 2011 in relation to 

allowances and payments; 

paragraph 15(2), so that it is clear that any interest 

disclosed should be registered in the authority’s 

register of members’ interests, by giving 

notification to the monitoring officer, or, in 

relation to a community council, to the proper 

officer of that authority. 

Article 2 of the Order omits paragraph 10(2)(b) of 

the model code set out in the Schedule to the 2008 

Order.  This clarifies that a member of a relevant 

authority is not to be regarded as having a personal 

interest in a matter when participating in, or making 

decisions on behalf of the authority simply for the 

reason that the business being considered at the 

meeting affects their ward. 

 

Page 8



 

 3 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  
I N S T R U M E N T S  

2016 No. (W. ) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 

WALES 

The Local Authorities (Model Code 

of Conduct) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Order 2016 

Made *** 

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales
 *** 

Coming into force *** 

This Order is made by the Welsh Ministers in exercise 

of the powers conferred on the National Assembly for 

Wales by sections 50(2), 50(3), 50(4), 50(4E), 81(2), 

81(3) and 105 of the Local Government Act 2000(1) 

and now vested in them(2); 

The Welsh Ministers have carried out such 

consultation as is required by virtue of section 50(5) of 

that Act; 

The Welsh Ministers are satisfied that, as required by 

section 50(4)(a) of that Act, the amendments to the 

model code of conduct being issued under section 

50(2) are consistent with the principles specified in the 

Conduct of Members (Principles) (Wales) Order 

2001(3) made pursuant to section 49(2). 

Accordingly, the Welsh Ministers make the following 

Order: 

                                                                            
(1) 2000 c. 22. 

(2) The functions of the National Assembly for Wales under 
sections 50, 81 and 105 were transferred to the Welsh 

Ministers under section 162 and paragraph 30 of Schedule 
11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c. 32). 

(3) S.I. 2001/2276 (W. 166) as amended by S.I. 2005/2929 (W. 
214). 

Page 9



 

 4 

 

Title, commencement, application and 

interpretation 

1.—(1) The title of this Order is the Local 

Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) (Wales) 

(Amendment) Order 2016 and it comes into force on 

xx. 

(2) This Order applies to each relevant authority in 

Wales. 

(3) In this Order— 

“the 2008 Order” (“Gorchymyn 2008”) means the 

Local Authorities (Model Code of Conduct) 

(Wales) Order 2008(1); 

 “relevant authority” (“awdurdod perthnasol”) has 

the meaning set out in Part 1 of the model code in 

the Schedule to the 2008 Order. 

Amendment of the Schedule to the 2008 Order 

2.—(1) The model code in the Schedule to the 2008 

Order is amended as follows. 

(2) In Part 1— 

(a) in paragraph 1(1), at the appropriate place 

insert— 

““register of members’ interests” (“cofrestr 

o fuddiannau’r aelodau”) means the register 

established and maintained under section 81 

of the Local Government Act 2000;”; 

(b) for paragraph 1(2) substitute— 

“(2) In relation to a community council— 

(a) “proper officer” (“swyddog priodol”) 

means an officer of that council within 

the meaning of section 270(3) of the 

Local Government Act 1972(2); and 

(b) “standards committee” (“pwyllgor 

safonau”) means the standards 

committee of the county or county 

borough council which has functions in 

relation to the community council for 

which it is responsible under section 

56(1) and (2) of the Local Government 

Act 2000.” 

(3) In Part 2—  

(a) in paragraph 3(a) omit “police authority or”; 

(b) in paragraph 6(1)(c) omit “to the Public 

Services Ombudsman for Wales and”. 

(4) In Part 3— 

(a) omit paragraph 10(2)(b); 

                                                                            
(1) S.I. 2008/788 (W. 82) 
(2) 1972 c. 70. 

Page 10



 

 5 

(b) in paragraph 11(4), after “monitoring officer” 

insert “, or in relation to a community council, 

your authority’s proper officer”; 

(c) for paragraph 12(2)(b)(iv) substitute— 

 “(iv) the functions of your authority in 

respect of an allowance or 

payment made in accordance with 

the provisions of Part 8 of the 

Local Government (Wales) 

Measure 2011(1), or an allowance 

or pension provided under section 

18 of the Local Government and 

Housing Act 1989(2);”. 

(5) In Part 4— 

(a) in paragraph 15(1), for “maintained under 

section 81(1) of the Local Government Act 

2000” substitute “of members’ interests”; 

(b) for paragraph 15(2) substitute— 

“(2) You must, within 28 days of becoming 

aware of— 

(a) any personal interest not previously 

registered, including an interest 

disclosed under paragraph 11; or 

(b) any change to any personal interest, 

register that personal interest or change in 

your authority’s register of members’ 

interests by providing written notification to 

your authority’s monitoring officer, or, in 

relation to a community council, your 

authority’s proper officer.”; 

(c) in paragraph 16(2), after “monitoring officer” 

insert “, or in relation to a community council, 

your authority’s proper officer”; 

(d) in paragraph 17, after “monitoring officer” 

insert “, or in relation to a community council, 

to your authority’s proper officer”. 

 

Leighton Andrews 

Minister for Public Services, one of the Welsh 

Ministers 

Date 

 

                                                                            
(1) 2011 nawm 4. 
(2) 1989 c. 42. 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  
I N S T R U M E N T S  

2016 No. (W. ) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 

WALES 

The Local Government (Standards 

Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

EXPLANATORY NOTE 

(This note is not part of the Regulations) 

These Regulations amend the regulations specified 

below to implement changes in local authorities with 

the aim of improving local democracy. 

Regulation 2 amends the Standard Committees 

(Wales) Regulations 2001. It makes provision: 

for local authorities to establish joint standards 

committees and the membership, remit and 

operation of such joint committees; 

amending existing provisions relating to the length 

of the term of office of members of standards 

committees; 

to clarify that a relevant authority is exempt from 

making the report or recommendations of an 

investigation available for public inspection until 

the proceedings are concluded; and 

setting out the procedure that applies where an 

investigation of misconduct is transferred to the 

standards committee of another relevant authority. 

Regulation 3 amends the Local Government 

Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and 

Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001. It 

sets out: 

details of the procedure for appealing against the 

decision of a standards committee and specifies 

that an appeal may only proceed if the President of 

the Adjudication Panel for Wales or a nominee 

considers that the appeal has a reasonable prospect 

of success; and 

the duties of a monitoring officer in relation to the 

operation and decisions of a joint committee. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 7b



 

 2 

Regulation 4 amends the Standards Committee 

(Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 to 

provide a procedure for a member’s application for a 

dispensation to be referred to the standards committee 

of another authority for determination. 

The detailed provisions are as follows— 

Regulation 2 

Joint Standards Committees 

Part III of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the 

2000 Act”) makes provision with respect to the 

conduct of local authority members and employees. 

Section 53(1) of the 2000 Act requires every relevant 

authority in Wales, that is, a county or county borough 

council, fire and rescue authority and a National Park 

authority but not for this purpose a community council, 

to establish a standards committee which is to have the 

functions conferred on it by or under Part III of the 

2000 Act. 

The Local Government (Democracy) (Wales) Act 

2013 (“the 2013 Act”) amended section 53 (1) of the 

2000 Act to enable two or more relevant authorities to 

establish a joint standards committee. 

Under section 53(11) of the 2000 Act, the National 

Assembly for Wales may by regulations make 

provision as to (among other things) the size, 

composition and proceedings of standards committees 

of relevant authorities in Wales including joint 

committees, and of any sub-committees established 

under section 56 of the 2000 Act. The functions of the 

National Assembly for Wales in this respect have since 

been transferred to the Welsh Ministers. 

Regulation 2 amends the Standard Committees 

(Wales) Regulations 2001 to make provision for the 

appointment of community committee and 

independent members to a joint standards committee 

and also to limit the number of executive members of a 

joint standards committee. Further provision is made 

to ensure that every meeting of a joint standards 

committee is attended by a monitoring officer of one 

of the constituent relevant authorities. In addition, the 

constituent relevant authorities of a joint standards 

committee must agree which one of them will be 

responsible for preparing and sending their terms of 

reference to the Public Ombudsman for Wales. 

Provision is made to specify that the length of the 

term of office of a local authority member of a 

standards committee is the period to the next ordinary 

local elections. The previous four year limitation has 
been removed. 

Page 14

https://www.lexisnexis.com/uk/legal/search/enhRunRemoteLink.do?A=0.28677833961457944&service=citation&langcountry=GB&backKey=20_T22380644077&linkInfo=F%23GB%23UK_ACTS%23num%252000_22a%25part%25III%25&ersKey=23_T22380644074


 

 3 

Publication of Misconduct Reports 

Section 51(1) of the 2000 Act imposes a duty upon 

all relevant authorities in Wales to adopt a code 

specifying the standards of conduct expected of their 

members and co-opted members. 

Under Section 69 of the 2000 Act the Public 

Services Ombudsman for Wales may investigate any 

alleged breach by members or co-opted members (or 

former members or co-opted members) of the code of 

conduct of a relevant authority in Wales. 

Where the Public Services Ombudsman for Wales 

ceases such an investigation before it is completed 

(under section 70(4) of the 2000 Act) the matter 

subject to the investigation may be referred to the 

monitoring officer of the relevant local authority. 

Alternatively, where the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales determines (under section 

71(2) of the 2000 Act) that it is appropriate for the 

matter may be referred to the monitoring officer of the 

relevant authority, the Ombudsman must produce a 

report on the outcome of the investigation and send it 

to the monitoring officer and the authority’s Standards 

Committee. 

Regulation 2 makes provision to exempt a standards 

committee or sub-committee from making a 

misconduct report or recommendations available for 

public inspection until proceedings under the Local 

Government Investigations (Functions of Monitoring 

Officers and Standards Committees) (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 are concluded.. The Regulation also 

sets out the events that will signify the end of the 

proceedings and give rise to the obligation to publish 

the materials as soon as reasonably practicable. 

Regulation 3 

Section 73 of the 2000 Act enables the Welsh 

Ministers to make regulations specifying how matters 

referred to a monitoring officer and standards 

committee are to be dealt with. The Local Government 

Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers and 

Standards Committees) (Wales) Order 2001 sets out 

the responsibilities of the monitoring officer and the 

standards committee in relation an investigation, the 

production of a report and the outcome of an 

investigation. 

Section 69 of the 2013 Act amended the regulation-

making power in the in section 73 of the 2000 Act so 

that the Welsh Ministers may make provision enabling 

a monitoring officer or a standards committee to refer 

a report or recommendations relating to a misconduct 
investigation to another relevant authority’s standards 

Page 15



 

 4 

committee. Regulation 3 amends the Order to set out 

the procedure to be followed for such a referral. 

Regulation 3 also amends the Order to modify and 

clarify the duties of a monitoring officer of a relevant 

authority where that relevant authority has established 

a joint standards committee. 

In relation to the right of a member to appeal against 

the decision of a standards committee, Regulation 3 

provides that an appeal may only proceed if the 

President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales or a 

nominee has first granted permission for the appeal to 

proceed. The procedure and timescales that apply to 

such an application are set out in detail in the 

Regulation. 

Regulation 4 

Regulation 4 amends the Standards Committee 

(Grant of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 so 

that a monitoring officer or standards committee of a 

relevant authority may refer an application for 

dispensation to the standards committee of another 

relevant authority. 

[A full regulatory impact assessment [has/has not] 

been produced for this instrument [to be completed]. 

 

Page 16



 

 5 

 

W E L S H  S T A T U T O R Y  
I N S T R U M E N T S  

2016 No. (W. ) 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT, 

WALES 

The Local Government (Standards 

Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) 
(Amendment) Regulations 2016 

Made *** 

Laid before the National Assembly for Wales
 *** 

Coming into force *** 

The Welsh Ministers, in exercise of the powers 

conferred on the National Assembly for Wales by 

sections 53(11), (12), 56(5), 73(1), 81(4), 105(1), (2) 

and 106 of the Local Government Act 2000(1) and 

now vested in them(2), hereby make the following 

order: 

Title, commencement, application and 

interpretation 

1.—(1) The title of these Regulations is the Local 

Government (Standards Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) (Amendment) 

Regulations 2016 and they come into force on […]. 

(2) In these Regulations— 

“the 1972 Act” (“Deddf 1972”) means the Local 

Government Act 1972(3); 

“the 2000 Act” (“Deddf 2000”) means the Local 

Government Act 2000(4). 

                                                                            
(1) 2000 c.22. 

(2) The functions of the National Assembly for Wales under 
sections  53, 56, 73, 81, 105 and 106 were transferred to the 

Welsh Ministers under section 162 and paragraph 30 of 
Schedule 11 to the Government of Wales Act 2006 (c 32). 

(3) 1972 c.70. 
(4) 2000 c.22. 

Page 17



 

 6 

Amendments to the Standards Committees (Wales) 

Regulations 2001 

2.—(1) The Standards Committees (Wales) 

Regulations 2001(1) are amended as follows— 

(2) In regulation 2 (interpretation) (“dehongli”) in 

the appropriate place— 

(a) in the definition of “community committee 

member” (“aelod pwyllgor cymmunedol”) 

after “authority” insert “or authorities”; 

(b) in the definition of “fire authority” 

(“awdurdod tân”), in the first place it occurs 

after “fire” insert “and rescue”; 

(c) in the definition of “independent member” 

(“aelod annibynnol”) after “relevant 

authority” the first time it occurs insert “or 

authorities”; 

(d) in the definition of “lay panel member” 

(“aelod panel lleyg”) after “authority” the first 

time it occurs insert “or authorities”; 

(e) in the definition of “mayor and cabinet 

executive” (“gweithrediaeth maer a 

chabinet”) omit the words after “in” and 

substitute “section 11(2) of the 2000 Act”; 

(f) in the definition of “member” (“aelod”) after 

“fire” insert “and rescue”; 

(g) in the definition of “relevant authority” 

(“awdurdod perthnasol”) in paragraph (d) 

after “fire” insert “and rescue”; 

(h) in the definition of “section 54(A) sub-

committee” (“is-bwyllgor adran 54A”) after 

“authority” insert “or authorities”; 

(i) in the definition of “standards committee” 

(“pwyllgor safonau”) delete the words after 

“means” and substitute— 

“(a) a standards committee of a relevant 

authority; 

(b) a joint committee established with one 

or more other relevant authorities; 

(c) a section 54A sub-committee; and 

(d) a community sub-committee;” 

(3) In regulation 4, in paragraph (a) after “authority” 

insert “or authorities”. 

(4) In regulation 8, in paragraph (3) after “fire” 

insert “and rescue”. 

(5) In regulation 9, after paragraph (1) insert— 

“(3) Where a local authority operates 

executive arrangements no more than one 

                                                                            
(1) S.I. 2001/2283/(W.172). 

Page 18



 

 7 

executive member from that local authority may 

be a member of a joint committee.”. 

(6) In regulation 10— 

(a) in paragraph (1), at the end of sub paragraph 

(a) insert “or in the case of a joint committee, 

in the area of that joint committee’s 

constituent local authorities”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), after “local authority” the 

second time it occurs insert “ or in the case of 

a joint committee by the designated local 

authority”; 

(c) in paragraph (3), in sub paragraphs (a) and (b) 

after “area” insert “or in the case of a joint 

committee, the combined areas of the 

constituent authorities”. 

(7) At the beginning of regulation 13 insert— 

“A13. 

In regulations 13-17 a requirement or act of a 

relevant authority or local authority in respect of 

that authority’s area includes in the case of a 

joint committee, the combined areas of that 

committee’s constituent authorities”. 

(8) In regulation 18— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“The term of office of a member of a local 

authority standards committee who is a 

member of that authority shall be no longer 

than the period until the next ordinary 

election for that authority following the 

member’s appointment to the committee.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), at the end insert “or in the 

case of a joint committee, of a constituent 

local authority of that committee”. 

(9) In regulation “18A”— 

(a) for paragraph (1)substitute— 

“The term of office of a member of a local 

authority standards committee who is a 

community committee member shall be no 

longer than the period until the next 

ordinary election for the community council 

of which the community committee member 

is a member following the member’s 

appointment to the standards committee.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), at the end insert “or in the 

case of a joint committee, of a constituent 

local authority of that committee”; 

(10) In regulation 19— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“Where a relevant authority is a National 

Park authority or a fire and rescue authority, 

the term of office of a member of that 

Page 19



 

 8 

authority’s standards committee who is a 

member of such an authority shall be no 

longer than the period until that member 

ceases to be a member of that authority.”; 

(b) in paragraph (2), at the end insert “or in the 

case of a joint committee, of a constituent 

relevant authority of that committee”. 

(11) In regulation 21— 

(a) for paragraph (1) substitute— 

“Subject to paragraph (2) of regulation 18 

and paragraph (2) of regulation 19 above, a 

member of the standards committee of a 

relevant authority who is a member of that 

authority or in the case of a joint committee, 

is a member of a constituent authority of 

that committee may be reappointed by the 

relevant authority or in the case of a joint 

committee by the relevant authority, if any, 

designated by the constituent relevant 

authorities for that purpose, for one further 

consecutive term.” 

(b) in paragraph (2), after “ authority” the second 

time it occurs insert “ or in the case of a joint 

committee, by the relevant authority, if any, 

designated by the constituent relevant 

authorities for that purpose”. 

(12) In regulation 21A— 

(a) in paragraph (1), after “ authority” the second 

time it occurs insert “or in the case of a joint 

committee, by the relevant authority, if any, 

designated by the constituent relevant 

authorities for that purpose”; 

(b) in paragraph (2)— 

(i) after “authority” insert “or in the case of 

a joint committee, the local authority, if 

any designated for that purpose”; 

(ii) in sub paragraphs (a) and (b) after “area” 

insert “or in the case of a joint 

committee, the combined areas of the 

constituent authorities” 

(13) In regulation 22, at the end of paragraph (8) 

insert “or in the case of a joint committee, to the 

proper officer designated for that purpose”. 

(14) In regulation 23, in paragraph (1), after 

“relevant authority” insert “or authorities”. 

(15) In regulation 25, for paragraph (3) substitute— 

“The monitoring officer or a representative 

of the monitoring officer of a relevant 

authority or in the case of a joint committee, 

a monitoring officer or a representative of a 

constituent authority of that joint committee 
shall attend every meeting of the standards 

committee”. 

Page 20



 

 9 

(16) In regulation 27, after paragraph (2) insert— 

“(2A) 

(a) A local authority may exempt from 

publication in accordance with 

paragraph (2) agendas for, records of or 

information connected to a matter 

referred to its standards committee 

pursuant to section 70(4) or (5) or 

section 71(2) or (4) of the 2000 Act; 

(b) The exemption in paragraph (a) will 

cease to apply upon the conclusion of 

the proceedings of the standards 

committee or sub-committee; 

(c) The conclusion of the proceedings in 

paragraph (b) means the latest of the 

following events specified in the Local 

Government Investigations (Functions 

of Monitoring Officers and Standards 

Committees) (Wales) Regulations 

2001; 

 (i) the expiry of time allowed to 

lodge a notice seeking permission 

to appeal under regulation 10(2); 

 (ii) receipt of notification of the 

decision of the President of the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales or 

the nominated panel member in 

accordance with regulation 10(8); 

 (iii) receipt of notification of the 

conclusion of any appeal in 

accordance with regulation 12 

(a)(i) or (b); or 

 (iv) a further determination by the 

standards committee made after 

receiving a recommendation from 

an appeals tribunal under 

regulation 12(a)(ii). 

(d) The standards committee or sub-

committee as the case may be must 

publish the materials to which 

paragraph (a) refers as soon as 

reasonably practicable following the 

conclusion of the proceedings.”. 

(17) In regulation 28, in paragraph (1), after 

“relevant authority concerned” insert “or in the case of 

a joint committee, the proper officer of a constituent 

authority of that joint committee”; 

(18) In regulation 29 after “relevant authority” in 

each place it occurs insert “or in the case of a joint 

committee, the designated relevant authority”. 

(19) In regulation 30, at the end of paragraph (3) 

insert— 

Page 21



 

 10 

“(4) A person who is a member of a standards 

committee on the date The Local Government 

(Standards Committees, Investigations, 

Dispensations and Referral) (Wales) 

(Amendments) Regulations 2016 come into 

force may if the relevant authority so 

determines, continue in office until the date of 

the next ordinary election unless that person 

ceases to be a member of the relevant authority 

concerned before the next ordinary election.”. 

Amendments to the Local Government 

Investigations (Functions of Monitoring Officers 

and Standards Committees) (Wales) Regulations 

2001 

3.—(1) The Local Government Investigations 

(Functions of Monitoring Officers and Standards 

Committees) (Wales) Regulations 2001(1) are 

amended as follows— 

(2) In regulation 3— 

(a) in paragraph (2) after “Wales” insert “or by 

the monitoring officer or standards committee 

of another relevant authority”; 

(b) after paragraph (2) insert— 

“(3) A monitoring officer of a relevant 

authority will be deemed to discharge the 

functions specified in paragraphs (1) (b) and (2) 

if arrangements are made for the functions of 

the monitoring officer of a relevant authority to 

be exercised by the monitoring officer of 

another relevant authority and that other 

monitoring officer discharges those functions. 

(4) A monitoring officer may not make 

arrangements for the functions specified in 

regulation (1)(b) to be undertaken by the 

monitoring officer of another relevant authority 

unless the Chairperson of the Standards 

Committee or Standards Committee of the 

relevant authority has consented in writing”. 

(3) In regulation 5 omit sub paragraph (f) of 

paragraph (1). 

(4) For regulation 7 substitute— 

“(1) After receiving a report and any 

recommendations from the monitoring officer, 

or a report from the Public Services 

Ombudsman for Wales together with any 

recommendations of the monitoring officer, the 

Standards Committee must determine either 

that: 

                                                                            
(1) S.I. 2001/2281 (W.171). 

Page 22



 

 11 

(a) there is no evidence of any failure to 

comply with the code of conduct of the 

relevant authority concerned and give 

notice to that effect to; 

 (i) the person who is the subject of 

the investigation; 

 (ii) the person or persons making the 

allegation which gave rise to the 

investigation; and 

 (iii) the Public Services Ombudsman 

for Wales; or 

(b) a person who is the subject of the 

investigation should be invited to make 

representations, either orally or in 

writing in respect of the findings of the 

investigation and of any allegation of a 

failure to comply with the relevant 

authority’s code of conduct. 

“(2) A standards committee may make 

arrangements for the functions specified in 

paragraph (1) be to be exercised by the 

standards committee of another relevant 

authority.”. 

Reports or Recommendations referred to another 

Standards Committee 

“[7A]. 

(1) Where a monitoring officer under 

regulation 6 (Reports) or a Standards 

Committee under regulation 7 (Functions of 

Standards Committees) makes arrangements 

under paragraph 3(3) or paragraph 7(2) the 

monitoring officer or Standards Committee 

making such arrangements must give the notice 

described in paragraph (2) to: 

(a) the person or persons who is or are the 

subject of investigation; 

(b) the person or persons making the 

allegation of misconduct giving rise to 

the investigation; and 

(c) the Public Services Ombudsman for 

Wales. 

(2) The notice to which paragraph (1) refers 

must include the following: 

(a) a statement that the matter has been 

referred to another relevant authority’s 

Standards Committee for 

determination; 

(b) the name of the other Standards 

Committee; and 

Page 23



 

 12 

(c) the reason why the matter has been 

referred to the other Standards 

Committee”. 

(5) In regulation 8— 

(a) in paragraph (5) after “of” the second time it 

occurs omit “the” and substitute “a”; 

(b) in paragraph (6), in paragraph (b) omit “or 

(b)”. 

(6) In regulation 9— 

(a) in paragraph (1), in sub paragraph (d) after 

“six months” insert “or if shorter the 

remainder of that person’s term of office”; 

(b) in paragraph (3) after “investigation” insert 

“and in cases where the Standards Committee 

made its determination pursuant to 

arrangements with the standards committee of 

another relevant authority that other standards 

committee”. 

(7) In regulation 10— 

(a) in paragraph (1) after “that person may” insert 

“seek permission to”; 

(b) in paragraph (2)— 

(i) after “The” at the beginning insert 

“application for permission to”; 

(ii) omit “this address”; and 

(iii) omit of the words that follow “Wales”; 

(c) in paragraph (3)— 

(i) at the beginning after “notice” insert 

“seeking permission to”; 

(ii) delete “of”; 

(iii) delete the words in paragraph (b) and 

substitute— 

“whether or not permission to appeal is 

granted, the person seeking permission 

to appeal consents to the appeal being 

conducted by way of written 

representations”; 

(d) after paragraph (3) insert— 

“(4) An application for permission to appeal 

is to be decided by the President of the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales or a member of 

the Panel nominated by the President of the 

Adjudication Panel to exercise this function and 

unless the President or the person nominated 

considers that special circumstances render a 

hearing desirable the decision on whether to 

grant permission to appeal will be made in the 

absence of the parties. 

(5) The President of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales or the nominated Panel member may 

request further information from the parties. 

Page 24



 

 13 

(6) The further information requested in 

paragraph (5) must be submitted to the 

President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales 

or the nominated Panel member within a period 

of 14 days from the date the request for further 

information is received. 

(7) In reaching a decision on whether to grant 

permission to appeal the President of the 

Adjudication Panel for Wales or the nominated 

Panel member must have regard to whether the 

appeal or part of it has a reasonable prospect of 

success. 

(8) The President of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales or the nominated Panel member must 

decide whether to grant permission to appeal 

and give notice of the decision no more than 21 

days after receipt of the application for 

permission to appeal or where further 

information has been requested under paragraph 

(5) no more than 14 days after the end of the 

period specified in paragraph (6). 

(9) The President of the Adjudication Panel 

for Wales or the nominated Panel member must 

notify the decision in paragraph (7) to— 

(a) the member seeking permission to 

appeal; 

(b) the Public Services Ombudsman for 

Wales; and 

(c) the standards committee or where the 

relevant authority has established a 

joint committee with one or more other 

relevant authorities to the joint 

committee of the relevant authority or 

authorities concerned. 

(10) If permission to appeal is refused the 

notice given under paragraph (9) must give 

reasons for that decision. 

(11) If permission to appeal is granted the 

President of the Adjudication Panel for Wales 

or the nominated Panel member must refer the 

matter to an appeals tribunal.”. 

(8) In regulation 11, in paragraph (2) omit “the 

deputy president” and substitute “a nominated Panel 

Member” in both cases where it occurs. 

(9) In regulation 13, after paragraph (1) add— 

“(1A) Where a report on the outcome of an 

investigation is produced by a standards 

committee of a relevant authority or a joint 

committee to which a report or recommendation 

has been referred by the standards committee or 

joint committee or monitoring officer of another 

relevant authority, the report on the outcome of 
the investigation must be sent to the monitoring 

officer of the referring relevant authority.”. 

Page 25



 

 14 

Amendments to the Standards Committees (Grant 

of Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001 

4.—(1) The Standards Committees (Grant of 

Dispensations) (Wales) Regulations 2001(1) are 

amended as follows— 

(2) In regulation 1, in paragraph (3) in the 

appropriate place insert “joint committee” (“cyd-
bwyllgor”) means the same as in section 53 of the 

Act”. 

(3) In regulation 2— 

(a) after “relevant authority” insert “or a joint 

committee”; 

(b) at the end of paragraph (h) omit “or” 

(c) in paragraph (i) for the words that follow 

“removed”  substitute “; or”  and 

(d) at the end insert— 

 “(j) “it appears to the committee to be 

otherwise appropriate to grant a 

dispensation.”. 

(4) After regulation 2 insert— 

“[3]. Procedure and powers of Standards 

Committees 

(a) An application for a dispensation made 

by a member of a relevant authority 

may be determined by the Standards 

Committee of another relevant 

authority. 

(b) The monitoring officer of a relevant 

authority to which an application for a 

dispensation is made may, with the 

prior written consent of the 

Chairperson of the Standards 

Committee of that authority, make 

arrangements for the application to be 

considered and determined by the 

Standards Committee of another 

relevant authority. 

(c) Where reasonable efforts to contact the 

Chairperson of the Standards 

Committee of the relevant authority 

have been unsuccessful, the Vice-

Chairperson of the Standards 

Committee may decide whether or not 

an application for a dispensation should 

be referred to the Standards Committee 

of another relevant authority. 

(d) Where an application for dispensation 

is submitted to the Standards 

Committee of a relevant authority, the 

                                                                            
(1) S.I. 2001/2279 (W.169). 

Page 26



 

 15 

Standards Committee may decide not 

to consider the application and to make 

arrangements for the application to be 

considered and determined by the 

Standards Committee of another 

relevant authority. 

(e) Where a monitoring officer or 

Standards Committee makes 

arrangements for a dispensation 

application to be considered and 

determined by the Standards 

Committee of another relevant 

authority, the monitoring officer or 

Standards Committee must notify the 

person making the application 

accordingly. 

(f) The notice to which paragraph (e) 

refers must include the following: 

 (i) a statement that the matter has 

been referred to another relevant 

authority’s Standards Committee 

for determination; 

 (ii) the name of the other Standards 

Committee; and 

 (iii) the reason why the application has 

been referred to that other 

Standards Committee. 

(g) when the Standards Committee has 

determined the application it must give 

written notice of its decision to the: 

 (i) member applying for the 

dispensation; and 

 (ii) Standards Committee of the 

referring relevant authority.”. 

 

 

 

 

Leighton Andrews 

Minister for Public Services, one of the Welsh 

Ministers 

 

Date 

Page 27



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting dated 22 October 2015
	7a Code of Conduct Amendments - Explanatory Notes
	7b Standards Committee Changes - Explanatory Notes

